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DIVISION 012 

ENFORCEMENT PROCEDURE AND CIVIL PENALTIES 

340-012-0065 

Solid Waste Management Classification of Violations 

(1) Class I: 

(a) Establishing or operating a disposal site without first obtaining a registration or 

permit; 

(b) Accepting solid waste for disposal in a permitted solid waste unit or facility that has 

been expanded in area or capacity without first submitting plans to DEQ and obtaining 

DEQ approval; 

(c) Disposing of or authorizing the disposal of a solid waste at a location not permitted 

by DEQ to receive that solid waste; 

(d) Violating a lagoon freeboard limit that results in the overflow of a sewage sludge or 

leachate lagoon; 

(e) Accepting for treatment, storage, or disposal at a solid waste disposal site, without 

approval from DEQ, waste defined as hazardous waste, waste from another state which 

is hazardous under the laws of that state, or wastes prohibited from disposal by statute, 

rule, permit, or order; 

(f) Failing to properly construct, maintain, or operate in good functional condition, 

groundwater, surface water, gas or leachate collection, containment, treatment, disposal 

or monitoring facilities in accordance with the facility permit, DEQ approved plans, or 

DEQ rules; 
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(g) Failing to collect, analyze or report groundwater, surface water or leachate quality 

data in accordance with the facility permit, the facility environmental monitoring plan, or 

DEQ rules; 

(h) Mixing for disposal or disposing of recyclable material that has been properly 

prepared and source separated for recycling; 

(i) Failing to establish or maintain financial assurance as required by statute, rule, permit 

or order; 

(j) Failing to comply with the terms of a permit terminated due to a failure to submit a 

timely application for renewal; or 

(k) Operating a composting facility in a manner that causes a discharge to surface water 

of pollutants, leachate or stormwater when that discharge is not authorized by a NPDES 

permit. 

 

(2) Class II: 

(a) Failing to accurately report the amount of solid waste disposed, by a permitted 

disposal site or a metropolitan service district; 

(b) Failing to timely or accurately report the weight and type of material recovered or 

processed from the solid waste stream; 

(c) Failing to comply with landfill cover requirements, including but not limited to daily, 

intermediate, and final covers, or limitation of working face size; 

(d) Operating a Household Hazardous Waste (HHW) collection event or temporary site 

without first obtaining DEQ approval or without complying with an approved plan for a 

HHW collection event; 

(e) Receiving or managing waste in violation of or without a DEQ-approved Special 

Waste Management Plan; or 

(f) Unless otherwise specifically classified, operating a composting facility in a manner 

that fails to comply with the facility’s registration, permit, DEQ-approved plans or DEQ 

rules. 

 

(3) Class III: 

(a) Failing to post required signs; 

(b) Failing to control litter; 

(c) Failing to notify DEQ of any name or address change; or. 
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(d) Violating any labeling requirement under ORS 459A.675-685. 

Statutory/Other Authority: ORS 459.045 & 468.020 

Statutes/Other Implemented: ORS 459.205, 459.376, 459.995 & 468.090 - 468.140 

 

340-012-0140 

Determination of Base Penalty 

(1) Except for Class III violations and as provided in OAR 340-012-0155, the base 

penalty (BP) is determined by applying the class and magnitude of the violation to the 

matrices set forth in this section. For Class III violations, no magnitude determination is 

required. 

(2) $12,000 Penalty Matrix: 

(a) The $12,000 penalty matrix applies to the following: 

(A) Any violation of an air quality statute, rule, permit or related order committed by a 

person that has or should have a Title V permit or an Air Contaminant Discharge Permit 

(ACDP) issued pursuant to New Source Review (NSR) regulations or Prevention of 

Significant Deterioration (PSD) regulations, or section 112(g) of the federal Clean Air 

Act, unless otherwise classified. 

(B) Open burning violations as follows: 

(i) Any violation of OAR 340-264-0060(3) committed by an industrial facility operating 

under an air quality permit. 

(ii) Any violation of OAR 340-264-0060(3) in which 25 or more cubic yards of prohibited 

materials or more than 15 tires are burned, except when committed by a residential 

owner-occupant. 

(C) Any violation of the Oregon Low Emission and Zero Emission Vehicle rules (OAR 

340-257) by a vehicle manufacturer. 

(D) Any violation of ORS 468B.025(1)(a) or (1)(b), or of 468B.050(1)(a) by a person 

without a National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit, unless 

otherwise classified. 

(E) Any violation of a water quality statute, rule, permit or related order by: 

(i) A person that has an NPDES permit, or that has or should have a Water Pollution 

Control Facility (WPCF) permit, for a municipal or private utility sewage treatment facility 

with a permitted flow of five million or more gallons per day. 

(ii) A person that has a Tier 1 industrial source NPDES or WPCF permit. 
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(iii) A person that has a population of 100,000 or more, as determined by the most 

recent national census, and either has or should have a WPCF Municipal Stormwater 

Underground Injection Control (UIC) System Permit, or has an NPDES Municipal 

Separated Storm Sewer Systems (MS4) Stormwater Discharge Permit. 

(iv) A person that installs or operates a prohibited Class I, II, III, IV or V UIC system, 

except for a cesspool. 

(v) A person that has or should have applied for coverage under an NPDES Stormwater 

Discharge 1200-C General Permit for a construction site that disturbs 20 or more acres. 

(F) Any violation of the ballast water statute in ORS Chapter 783 or ballast water 

management rule in OAR 340, division 143. 

(G) Any violation of a Clean Water Act Section 401 Water Quality Certification by a 100 

megawatt or more hydroelectric facility. 

(H) Any violation of a Clean Water Act Section 401 Water Quality Certification for a 

dredge and fill project except for Tier 1, 2A or 2B projects. 

(I) Any violation of an underground storage tanks statute, rule, permit or related order 

committed by the owner, operator or permittee of 10 or more UST facilities or a person 

who is licensed or should be licensed by DEQ to perform tank services. 

(J) Any violation of a heating oil tank statute, rule, permit, license or related order 

committed by a person who is licensed or should be licensed by DEQ to perform 

heating oil tank services. 

(K) Any violation of ORS 468B.485, or related rules or orders regarding financial 

assurance for ships transporting hazardous materials or oil. 

(L) Any violation of a used oil statute, rule, permit or related order committed by a 

person who is a used oil transporter, transfer facility, processor or re-refiner, off-

specification used oil burner or used oil marketer. 

(M) Any violation of a hazardous waste statute, rule, permit or related order by: 

(i) A person that is a large quantity generator or hazardous waste transporter. 

(ii) A person that has or should have a treatment, storage or disposal facility permit. 

(N) Any violation of an oil and hazardous material spill and release statute, rule, or 

related order committed by a covered vessel or facility as defined in ORS 468B.300 or 

by a person who is engaged in the business of manufacturing, storing or transporting oil 

or hazardous materials. 

(O) Any violation of a polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs) management and disposal 

statute, rule, permit or related order. 
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(P) Any violation of ORS Chapter 465, UST or environmental cleanup statute, rule, 

related order or related agreement. 

(Q) Unless specifically listed under another penalty matrix, any violation of ORS 

Chapter 459 or any violation of a solid waste statute, rule, permit, or related order 

committed by: 

(i) A person that has or should have a solid waste disposal permit. 

(ii) A city with a population of 25,000 or more, as determined by the most recent national 

census. 

(R) Any violation of the Oregon Clean Fuels Program under OAR Chapter 340, division 

253 by a person registered as an importer of blendstocks, 

(S) Any violation classified under OAR 340-012-0054 (1) (dd), (ee), (ff), or (gg). 

(T) Any violation of the Oregon Greenhouse Gas Reporting Program under OAR 

Chapter 340, division 215 by a person with greenhouse gas emissions greater than or 

equal to 25,000 metric tons per year or by a person that has not reported greenhouse 

gas emissions to DEQ during the past five years, or by a person for which DEQ has 

insufficient information to accurately estimate emissions. 

(U) Any violation of the Third Party Verification rules under OAR Chapter 340, division 

272. 

(V) Any violation of the Landfill Gas Emissions rules under OAR chapter 340, division 

239 by a person required to comply with OAR 340-239-0110 through OAR 340-239-

0800. 

(W) Any violation of the rules for Emission Standards for New Heavy-Duty Trucks under 

OAR chapter 340 division 261 by engine, truck or trailer manufacturers and dealers. 

(X) Any violation of the Climate Protection Program rules under OAR chapter 340, 

division 271. 

(Y) Any violation of the Fuel Tank Seismic Stability Program rules under OAR chapter 

340, division 300. 

(Z) Any violation of ORS 459A.305 to 459A.355 or related rules committed by: 

(i) A producer responsibility organization. 

(ii) A manufacturer. 

(b) The base penalty values for the $12,000 penalty matrix are as follows: 

(A) Class I: 

(i) Major — $12,000; 
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(ii) Moderate — $6,000; 

(iii) Minor — $3,000. 

(B) Class II: 

(i) Major — $6,000; 

(ii) Moderate — $3,000; 

(iii) Minor — $1,500. 

(C) Class III: $1,000. 

(3) $8,000 Penalty Matrix: 

(a) The $8,000 penalty matrix applies to the following: 

(A) Any violation of an air quality statute, rule, permit, permit attachment, or related 

order committed by a person that has or should have an ACDP permit, except for NSR, 

PSD and Basic ACDP permits, unless listed under another penalty matrix, unless 

otherwise classified. 

(B) Any violation of an asbestos statute, rule, permit or related order except those 

violations listed in section (5) of this rule. 

(C) Any violation of a vehicle inspection program statute, rule, permit or related order 

committed by an auto repair facility. 

(D) Any violation of the Oregon Low Emission Vehicle rules (OAR 340-257) committed 

by an automobile dealer or an automobile rental agency. 

(E) Any violation of a water quality statute, rule, permit or related order committed by: 

(i) A person that has an NPDES Permit, or that has or should have a WPCF Permit, for 

a municipal or private utility sewage treatment facility with a permitted flow of two million 

or more, but less than five million, gallons per day. 

(ii) A person that has a Tier 2 industrial source NPDES or WPCF Permit. 

(iii) A person that has or should have applied for coverage under an NPDES or a WPCF 

General Permit, except an NPDES Stormwater Discharge 1200-C General Permit for a 

construction site of less than five acres in size or 20 or more acres in size. 

(iv) A person that has a population of less than 100,000 but more than 10,000, as 

determined by the most recent national census, and has or should have a WPCF 

Municipal Stormwater UIC System Permit or has an NPDES MS4 Stormwater 

Discharge Permit. 

(v) A person that owns, and that has or should have registered, a UIC system that 

disposes of wastewater other than stormwater or sewage or geothermal fluids. 
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(F) Any violation of a Clean Water Act Section 401 Water Quality Certification by a less 

than 100 megawatt hydroelectric facility. 

(G) Any violation of a Clean Water Act Section 401 Water Quality Certification for a Tier 

2A or Tier 2B dredge and fill project. 

(H) Any violation of an UST statute, rule, permit or related order committed by a person 

who is the owner, operator or permittee of five to nine UST facilities. 

(I) Unless specifically listed under another penalty matrix, any violation of ORS Chapter 

459 or other solid waste statute, rule, permit, or related order committed by: 

(i) A person that has or should have a waste tire permit; or 

(ii) A person with a population of more than 5,000 but less than or equal to 25,000, as 

determined by the most recent national census. 

(J) Any violation of a hazardous waste management statute, rule, permit or related order 

committed by a person that is a small quantity generator. 

(K) Any violation of an oil and hazardous material spill and release statute, rule, or 

related order committed by a person other than a person listed in OAR 340-012-

0140(2)(a)(N) occurring during a commercial activity or involving a derelict vessel over 

35 feet in length. 

(L) Any violation of the Oregon Clean Fuels Program under OAR chapter 340, division 

253 unless the violation is otherwise classified in this rule. 

(M) Any violation of the Oregon Greenhouse Gas Reporting Program under OAR 

Chapter 340, division 215 by a person with greenhouse gas emissions less than 25,000 

metric tons per year but greater than or equal to 5,000 metric tons per year. 

(N) Any violation of the Landfill Gas Emissions rules under OAR chapter 340, division 

239 by a person that owns or operates a landfill with over 200,000 tons waste in place 

and is not required to comply with OAR 340-239-0110 through OAR 340-239-0800. 

(O) Any violation of a hazardous waste pharmaceutical statute, rule, permit or related 

order committed by a person that is a reverse distributor. 

(b) The base penalty values for the $8,000 penalty matrix are as follows: 

(A) Class I: 

(i) Major — $8,000. 

(ii) Moderate — $4,000. 

(iii) Minor — $2,000. 

(B) Class II: 
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(i) Major — $4,000. 

(ii) Moderate — $2,000. 

(iii) Minor — $1,000. 

(C) Class III: $ 700. 

(4) $3,000 Penalty Matrix: 

(a) The $3,000 penalty matrix applies to the following: 

(A) Any violation of any statute, rule, permit, license, or order committed by a person not 

listed under another penalty matrix. 

(B) Any violation of an air quality statute, rule, permit, permit attachment, or related 

order committed by a person not listed under another penalty matrix. 

(C) Any violation of an air quality statute, rule, permit, permit attachment, or related 

order committed by a person that has or should have a Basic ACDP or an ACDP or 

registration only because the person is subject to Area Source NESHAP regulations. 

(D) Any violation of OAR 340-264-0060(3) in which 25 or more cubic yards of prohibited 

materials or more than 15 tires are burned by a residential owner-occupant. 

(E) Any violation of a vehicle inspection program statute, rule, permit or related order 

committed by a natural person, except for those violations listed in section (5) of this 

rule. 

(F) Any violation of a water quality statute, rule, permit, license or related order not listed 

under another penalty matrix and committed by: 

(i) A person that has an NPDES permit, or has or should have a WPCF permit, for a 

municipal or private utility wastewater treatment facility with a permitted flow of less than 

two million gallons per day. 

(ii) A person that has or should have applied for coverage under an NPDES Stormwater 

Discharge 1200-C General Permit for a construction site that is more than one, but less 

than five acres. 

(iii) A person that has a population of 10,000 or less, as determined by the most recent 

national census, and either has an NPDES MS4 Stormwater Discharge Permit or has or 

should have a WPCF Municipal Stormwater UIC System Permit. 

(iv) A person who is licensed to perform onsite sewage disposal services or who has 

performed sewage disposal services. 

(v) A person, except for a residential owner-occupant, that owns and either has or 

should have registered a UIC system that disposes of stormwater, sewage or 

geothermal fluids. 
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(vi) A person that has or should have a WPCF individual stormwater UIC system permit. 

(vii) Any violation of a water quality statute, rule, permit or related order committed by a 

person that has or should have applied for coverage under an NPDES 700-PM General 

Permit for suction dredges. 

(G) Any violation of an onsite sewage disposal statute, rule, permit or related order, 

except for a violation committed by a residential owner-occupant. 

(H) Any violation of a Clean Water Act Section 401 Water Quality Certification for a Tier 

1 dredge and fill project. 

(I) Any violation of an UST statute, rule, permit or related order if the person is the 

owner, operator or permittee of two to four UST facilities. 

(J) Any violation of a used oil statute, rule, permit or related order, except a violation 

related to a spill or release, committed by a person that is a used oil generator. 

(K) Any violation of a hazardous waste management statute, rule, permit or related 

order committed by a person that is a very small quantity generator, unless listed under 

another penalty matrix. 

(L) Any violation of ORS Chapter 459 or other solid waste statute, rule, permit, or 

related order committed by a person with a population less than 5,000, as determined 

by the most recent national census. 

(M) Any violation of the labeling requirements of ORS 459A.675 through 459A.685. 

(N) Any violation of rigid pesticide container disposal requirements by a very small 

quantity generator of hazardous waste. 

(O) Any violation of ORS 468B.025(1)(a) or (b) resulting from turbid discharges to 

waters of the state caused by non-residential uses of property disturbing less than one 

acre in size. 

(P) Any violation of an oil and hazardous material spill and release statute, rule, or 

related order committed by a person not listed under another matrix. 

(Q) Any violation of the Oregon Greenhouse Gas Reporting Program under OAR 

Chapter 340, division 215 by a person with greenhouse gas emissions less than 5,000 

metric tons per year. 

(b) The base penalty values for the $3,000 penalty matrix are as follows: 

(A) Class I: 

(i) Major — $3,000; 

(ii) Moderate — $1,500; 

(iii) Minor — $750. 
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(B) Class II: 

(i) Major — $1,500; 

(ii) Moderate — $750; 

(iii) Minor — $375. 

(C) Class III: $250. 

(5) $1,000 Penalty Matrix: 

(a) The $1,000 penalty matrix applies to the following: 

(A) Any violation of an open burning statute, rule, permit or related order committed by a 

residential owner-occupant at the residence, not listed under another penalty matrix. 

(B) Any violation of visible emissions standards by operation of a vehicle. 

(C) Any violation of an asbestos statute, rule, permit or related order committed by a 

residential owner-occupant. 

(D) Any violation of an onsite sewage disposal statute, rule, permit or related order of 

OAR chapter 340, division 44 committed by a residential owner-occupant. 

(E) Any violation of an UST statute, rule, permit or related order committed by a person 

who is the owner, operator or permittee of one UST facility. 

(F) Any violation of an HOT statute, rule, permit or related order not listed under another 

penalty matrix. 

(G) Any violation of OAR chapter 340, division 124 or ORS 465.505 by a dry cleaning 

owner or operator, dry store owner or operator, or supplier of perchloroethylene. 

(H) Any violation of ORS Chapter 459 or other solid waste statute, rule or related order 

committed by a residential owner-occupant. 

(I) Any violation of a statute, rule, permit or order relating to rigid plastic containers, 

except for violation of the labeling requirements under OAR 459A.675 through 

459A.685. 

(J) Any violation of a statute, rule or order relating to the opportunity to recycle. 

(K) Any violation of OAR chapter 340, division 262 or other statute, rule or order relating 

to solid fuel burning devices, except a violation related to the sale of new or used solid 

fuel burning devices or the removal and destruction of used solid fuel burning devices. 

(L) Any violation of an UIC system statute, rule, permit or related order by a residential 

owner-occupant, when the UIC disposes of stormwater, sewage or geothermal fluids. 
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(M) Any Violation of ORS 468B.025(1)(a) or (b) resulting from turbid discharges to 

waters of the state caused by residential use of property disturbing less than one acre in 

size. 

(N) Any violation of ORS 459A.305 to 459A.355 or related rules committed by a person 

not listed under another matrix. 

(b) The base penalty values for the $1,000 penalty matrix are as follows: 

(A) Class I: 

(i) Major — $1,000; 

(ii) Moderate — $500; 

(iii) Minor — $250. 

(B) Class II: 

(i) Major — $500; 

(ii) Moderate — $250; 

(iii) Minor — $125. 

(C) Class III: $100. 

Statutory/Other Authority: ORS 459A.345, ORS 468.020 & 468.090 - 468.140 

Statutes/Other Implemented: ORS 459.995, 459A.655, 459A.660, ORS 459A.305 - 

459A.355 & 468.035 

 

340-012-0099 

Classification of Violations for Producer Responsibility Program Requirements, 

including ORS 459A.305 to 459A.355 and related rules 

(1) Class I: 

(a) Failing to register or participate in a producer responsibility organization; 

(b) Failing to substantially implement a producer responsibility program plan; 

(c) Failing to provide for environmentally sound management practices in the collection, 

transportation, or processing of covered electronic devices; 

(2) Class II: 

(a) Failing to submit a plan, study, notification, report, or other required information to 

DEQ, unless otherwise specified; 
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(b) Failing to implement one or more elements of a producer responsibility program 

plan; 

(c) For a coordinating body, failing to coordinate between electronics producer 

responsibility organizations; 

(d) Violating any otherwise unclassified requirement of ORS 459A.305 to 459A.355 or 

related rules.    

Statutory/Other Authority: ORS 459A.345 and 468.020 

Statutes/Other Implemented: ORS 459A.305 - 459A.355 

 

340-012-0155 

Additional or Alternate Civil Penalties 

(1) DEQ may assess additional civil penalties for the following violations as specified 

below: 

(a) DEQ may assess a civil penalty of up to $250,000 to any person who intentionally or 

recklessly violates any provisions of ORS 164.785, 459.205-459.426, 459.705–459.790, 

Chapters 465, 466, 467, 468, or 468A or 468B or any rule or standard or order of the 

commission adopted or issued pursuant to 459.205–459.426, 459.705–459.790, 

Chapters 465, 466, 467, 468, 468A, or 468B, that results in or creates the imminent 

likelihood for an extreme hazard to public health or that causes extensive damage to the 

environment. When determining the civil penalty to be assessed under this subsection, 

the director will use the procedures set out below: 

(A) The following base penalties apply: 

(i) $100,000 if the violation was caused intentionally; 

(ii) $150,000 if the violation was caused recklessly; 

(iii) $200,000 if the violation was caused flagrantly. 

(B) The civil penalty is calculated using the following formula: BP + [(.1 x BP) (P + H + O 

+ C)] + EB. 

(b) Any person who intentionally or negligently causes or permits the discharge of oil or 

hazardous materials into waters of the state or intentionally or negligently fails to clean 

up a spill or release of oil or hazardous materials into waters of the state will incur a civil 

penalty not to exceed $100,000 dollars for each violation. The amount of the penalty is 

determined as follows: 

(A) The class and magnitude of the violation are determined according to OAR 340-012-

0045, then the base penalty is determined according to OAR 340-012-0140. 



 

13 
 

(B) The multiplier for the base penalty is determined by adding the following values: 

(i) 2 points if the violation was caused negligently; or 3 points if the violation was caused 

recklessly; or 4 points if the violation was caused intentionally with actual knowledge 

that a violation would occur; and 

(ii) 1 point if the oil or hazardous material is or contains any constituent listed as a 

“hazardous substance” in 40 CFR 302; or 2 points if the oil or hazardous material is or 

contains any constituent listed as an “extremely hazardous substance” under 40 CFR 

355; and 

(iii) 2 points if the volume of the oil or hazardous material spilled, lost to the 

environment, or not cleaned up exceeds 1,000 gallons; and 

(iv) 1 point if the violation impacted an area of particular environmental value where oil 

or hazardous materials could pose a greater threat than in other non-sensitive areas, for 

example, sensitive environments such as those listed in OAR 340-122-0115(50), 

drinking water sources, and cultural sites. 

(C) The base penalty from paragraph (A) is multiplied by the sum of the points from 

paragraph (B) to determine the adjusted base penalty. The civil penalty formula in OAR 

340-012-0045 is applied using the adjusted base penalty for the BP factor. 

(c) Any person who willfully or negligently causes or permits the discharge of oil to state 

waters will incur, in addition to any other penalty derived from application of the 

applicable penalty matrix in 340-012-0140(2) and the civil penalty formula contained in 

340-012-0045, a civil penalty commensurate with the amount of damage incurred. The 

amount of the penalty will be determined by the director with the advice of the director of 

the Oregon Department of Fish and Wildlife. In determining the amount of the penalty, 

the director may consider the gravity of the violation, the previous record of the violator 

in complying with the provisions of ORS 468B.450 to 468B.460, and such other 

considerations the director deems appropriate. 

(d) Any person who has care, custody or control of a hazardous waste or a substance 

that would be a hazardous waste except for the fact that it is not discarded, useless or 

unwanted. will incur a civil penalty according to the schedule set forth in ORS 496.705 

for the destruction, due to contamination of food or water supply by such waste or 

substance, of any of the wildlife referred to in ORS 496.705 that are property of the 

state. 

(e) DEQ may assess a civil penalty of $500 to any owner or operator of a confined 

animal feeding operation that has not applied for or does not have a permit required by 

ORS 468B.050. 

(2) Civil penalties for certain violations are subject to the following maximums in lieu of 

the maximum daily penalty provided in OAR 340-012-160(4): 
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(a) DEQ may assess a civil penalty of up to $1,000 for each day of violation to any 

person that fails to comply with the prohibitions on the sale or distribution of cleaning 

agents containing phosphorus in ORS 468B.130. 

(b) DEQ may assess a civil penalty of up to $500 for each violation of each day to any 

person that fails to comply with Toxics Use Reduction and Hazardous Waste Reduction 

Act requirements of ORS 465.003 to 465.034. 

(c) DEQ may assess a civil penalty of up to $500 for each violation of ORS 459.420 to 

459.426. Each battery that is improperly disposed of is a separate violation, and each 

day an establishment fails to post the notice required by ORS 459.426 is a separate 

violation. 

(d) DEQ may assess a civil penalty of up to $500 for each violation of the requirement to 

provide the opportunity to recycle as required by ORS 459A.005. 

(3) DEQ may assess the civil penalties below in lieu of civil penalties calculated 

pursuant to OAR 340-012-0045: 

(a) DEQ will assess a Field Penalty as specified under OAR 340-150-0250 unless DEQ 

determines that an owner, operator or permittee is not eligible for the Field Penalty. 

(b) DEQ may assess Expedited Enforcement Offers as specified under OAR 340-012-

0170(2). 

(4) DEQ may assess a civil penalty of up to $500 for each violation of ORS 

459.247(1)(f). Each covered electronic device that is disposed of improperly is a 

separate violation. 

Statutory/Other Authority: ORS 459A.345, 465, 466, 468.020, 468.130, 468.996 & 

783.992 

Statutes/Other Implemented: ORS 459.247, 459.995, 465.021, 466.785, 466.835, 

466.992, 468.090 - 468.140, 468.996, 468B.220, 468B.450 & 783.992 

 

Translation or other formats 

Español  |  한국어  |  繁體中文  |  Pусский  |  Tiếng Việt  |  العربية 

800-452-4011  |  TTY: 711  |  deqinfo@deq.oregon.gov  
 
Non-discrimination statement 
DEQ does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, disability, age or 
sex in administration of its programs or activities. Visit DEQ’s Civil Rights and 
Environmental Justice page. 
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